

DHS Council Meeting Minutes May 12, 2022

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS	DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Rebecca Peterson - present	Director Kelly Garcia – present
Skylar Mayberry-Mayes – absent	Jean Slaybaugh - present
Kimberly Kudej – present	Matt Highland – present
Sam Wallace – present	Cory Turner - present
Jack Willey – present	Faith Sandberg-Rodriguez-present
Monika Jindal - present	Nancy Freudenberg – present
Kay Fisk – absent	Carrie Malone - present
	Vern Armstrong - present
	Janee Harvey - present
	Liz Matney – present

EX-OFFICIO LEGISLATIVE MEMBERS	
Representative Joel Fry – absent	
Senator Mark Costello – absent	
Senator Amanda Ragan – present	
Representative Timi Brown-Powers – absent	

Call to Order

Chair Rebecca Peterson called the Council meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. via zoom teleconference.

<u>Roll Call</u>

Peterson, Wallace, Kudej, Willey, and Jindal were present. Mayberry-Mayes and Fisk were absent. Senator Ragan was present, all other ex-officio members were absent.

Approval of Minutes

A motion was made by Wallace and seconded by Willey to approve the minutes of the May 12, 2022, meeting. **MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED**

Rules

R-1. Amendments to Chapter 3, "Procedures for Rulemaking" lowa Administrative Code. (Aligns rules with current practice)

This rulemaking updates information on the current rulemaking process, including contact information and electronic availability of documents. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Kudej **MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-2. Amendments to Chapter 4, "Petitions for Rulemaking," Iowa Administrative Code. (Aligns rules with current practice)

This rulemaking makes changes to contact information and minor changes to wording for consistency regarding the process for filing a petition for rulemaking. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Willey to approve and seconded by Wallace **MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-3. Amendments to Chapter 8, "Payment of Small Claims," lowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the lowa Code)

When an employee's personal items are damaged or destroyed during an employee's tour of duty, the Department may reimburse the employee for repair or replacement of the items. Claims that are approved are to be paid from the Department's support allocation and cannot exceed \$300 per item. This is an increase in the maximum allocation of \$150 per item and is being done to bring the rules into compliance with the lowa Code. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Wallace **MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-4. Amendments to Chapter 14, "Offset of County Debts," lowa Administrative Code. (Rescind chapter)

The department is eliminating Chapter 14 in its entirety. The process for offsets of debts owed to state agencies in this chapter is duplicative of the requirement in 11 IAC chapter 40 and the set off procedures in lowa Code 8A.604. As the Department of Administrative Services has established a process by which state agencies can participate in the offset program by identifying debts who owe liabilities to that agency and offset those liabilities against claims owed to debts by agencies, this rule chapter is no longer necessary. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Willey to approve and seconded by Jindal **MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-5. Amendments to Chapter 28, "Policies for Mental Health Institutes and Resource Centers," Iowa Administrative Code. (Aligns rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

The department is updating rules for Mental Health Institutes and Resources Centers. Definitions are being updated to eliminate outdated terminology. The application process was aligned with current practices. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process for MHDS rules.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Kudej **MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED**

R-6. Amendments to Chapter 81, "Nursing Facilities," lowa Administrative Code. (Aligns rules with federal regulations regarding hours of training required for nurse aid programs)

The department is updating rules to reflect federal regulations regarding the increased number of hours of training required for nurse aid programs. There is also a proposed increase of the instructor-to-student ratio which will allow more students to attend nursing programs. Additional language is being added for laboratory and clinical training options.

A motion was made by Kudej and seconded by Willey to hold this rule until the Council receives further information. This rule will be brought to the Council for a vote in June.

R-7. Amendments to Chapter 153, "Funding for Local Services" lowa Administrative Code. (Updates the child care quality ratios for licensed child care centers).

This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process. Division I sets the requirements for developing a social services block grant preexpenditure report. This rulemaking adds references to the intended use plan, which is done in tandem with the social services block grant preexpenditure report. The proposed report and intended use plan need to be available for public review and comment for a minimum of ten days, instead of two weeks. Division II updates the number of the Department's service areas from eight to six and updates the name of community empowerment board to Early Childhood Iowa. Division IV is rescinded as the program no longer exists and the Iowa Code Section that authorized the program has been repealed.

A motion was made by Wallace to approve and seconded by Kudej

MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED

R-8. Amendments to Chapter 184, "Individual and Family Direct Support," lowa Administrative Code. (Aligns rules with current practice and the lowa Code)

This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process. Division I regarding the Family Support Subsidy Program updates the definition of a family member based on the federal Development Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights as codified in 42 U.S.C. The department is no longer accepting new applications for the program after January 1, 2010. Members who are currently enrolled in the program remain eligible until one of the reasons for termination is met. This rulemaking brings the rules into compliance with the Iowa Code. Division II regarding the Comprehensive Family Support Program updates an outdated reference to the U.S.C. and removes the form name and number of the application used to apply for the program from the rules as the application form became obsolete effective July 1, 2016.

A motion was made by Fisk to approve and seconded by Jindal

MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED

N-1. Amendments to Chapter 5, "Declatory Orders," lowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the lowa Code)

This rule making makes changes to contact information and minor changes to wording for consistency throughout the rules. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

N-2. Amendments to Chapter 47, "Diversion Initiatives," Iowa Administrative Code. (Align rules with current practice and the Iowa Code)

This rule making updates the name of Iowa's food assistance program in Division I to the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) to be consistent with the federal program and alleviate confusion around food benefits. Division II clarifies rules in the PROMISE JOBS program and the duties of the division administrator.

N-3. Amendments to Chapter 78, "Amount, Duration and Scope of Medical and Remedial Services," lowa Administrative Code. (Sets an annual benefit maximum for dental services for members 21 years of age or older).

This rule making clarifies that payment will be made for emergency dental services defined in federal regulations. The proposed rule also sets an annual benefit maximum of \$1,000 for members 21 years of age or older for coverage of dental services per state fiscal year.

N-4. Amendments to Chapter 158, "Foster Home Insurance Fund," lowa Administrative Code. (Updates insurance fund to cover auto damage)

This proposed rulemaking updates the insurance coverage under the foster Home Insurance fund to include auto damage by foster care children as a covered expense. This rulemaking does not change the premium or the total costs the Department currently pays. This review is part of the department's five-year rules review process.

A motion was made by Kudej to approve and seconded by Willey

MOTION UNAMIMOUSLY CARRIED

MCO Quarterly Report, SFY2022, Quarter 2

Kurt Behrens, Medicaid Management Analyst, provided an overview of the MCO 2nd Quarter Report. Kurt highlighted the addition of tracking and reporting on children's mental health diagnosis, treatment, and services to the quarterly report.

Director's Report

Matt Highland, Director of Strategic Operations, provided the Director's report to Council. Matt updated the Council on the 2022 Legislation session highlighting two bills that have been passed and are on their way to the Governor to sign. The first bill, HF 2252, is all about better supporting lowa children and families. Highlights include expanding child care assistance for permanently disabled parents and increasing the age of foster care from 18 to 21. The second bill, HF 2507, is the Family First implementation bill that emphasizes that when a child is removed from their home, placement priority is given to a relative or fictive kin. Family First has resulted in significantly fewer children entering foster care. On the public health side, SF 2345, which the Governor has signed, expands the number of conditions screened for during newborn screenings.

Matt shared that we have been faced with some serious challenges related to children and providers who serve some of our most vulnerable youth. Family First requires Qualified Residential Treatment Providers, or QRTPs, (often referred to as group care) be available for youth with mental and behavioral health needs which prevent them from living safely in a home environment. Due to a variety of factors, many residential providers have terminated their contracts over the past 18 months. DHS recognized the need for action, and in January of this year, used carryforward dollars to increase both QRTP and shelter provider rates. We are also working to issue an RFP for a new 2-year contract with our QRTP and shelter providers. More updates to come.

Matt provided an update on our suicide prevention work and the response to some alarming trends we are seeing. We recently launched a statewide multi-media, multi-platform messaging campaign targeting youth and adults. We will send the links out after the meeting so folks can share those.

Adjournment

A motion was made by Kudej to adjourn the meeting and was seconded by Jindal

Meeting adjourned at 11:33 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted by: Julie McCauley Council Secretary